
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
RFP:  C170002 – Lottery Broadcast Studio Design and Integration 
 
 

BIDDER ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDUM 
 
 
 
Amendment Number: Two (Includes Q & A Summary) 
 
Date Issued:   March 23, 2017 
 
Summary:    
 
 Revision to A.15 under Amendment One: 

 
Q.15:  If the Commission or a third party is to purchase the equipment and NOT the 
phase 2 installer; please describe how the equipment will be supplied to the installer’s 
place of business in a timely manner so as not to impact timelines and hence costs, and 
how any equipment transport/delivery costs will be dealt with? 
 
A.15:  Revised Answer:  All equipment will be purchased by the Commission and 
delivery will be made to the designer’s worksite for configuration and pre-racking.  Cost of 
delivery by the designer to the Commission, following configuration and pre-racking, must 
be included in the total Phase Two – Integration, Testing and Training cost on the Pricing 
Proposal Form. 
 

 RFP Section 2.28:  Delete the last sentence of this paragraph, as it does not pertain.   
 

 RFP Section 3.1.B.2 – Site Preparation:  This section of the RFP is deleted in its 
entirety and replaced with the following: 
The Commission will work with OGS to remove the existing stage, and other heavy 
materials, and repair and/or refinish the flooring and/or wall coverings to the desired 
effect, as recommended by the successful bidder.  The Commission will order equipment, 
and direct deliveries to the site requested by the successful bidder for configuration and 
pre-racking.  The designer shall verify that the proper equipment is received and without 
damage, indicate approval/acceptance on each packing slip, and scan the packing slips, 
accompanied with a spreadsheet accounting for each packing slip, to the Commission, as 
verification of receipt, on at least a weekly basis.   
 
The Commission will coordinate work with each party, and keep the successful bidder 
informed of progress.  All efforts will be made to maximize time in an efficient manner. 



 RFP Section 3.1.C.1.b – Installation/Integration of New Equipment and Related 
Materials:  This section of the RFP is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the 
following (provides additional information): 
 
The successful respondent shall install all equipment and related materials 
recommended for the studio and control room as outlined under Phase One – RFP 
Section 3.1.A.   

 
To the greatest extent possible, equipment shall be pre-racked, wired and configured off 
site prior to delivery and installation in the Lottery’s control room.  Cables shall be cut to 
length to provide for a clean installation and shall be uniquely labeled at each cable end. 
The cables shall be labeled with permanent labels at both ends and dressed inside racks 
and behind consoles and other equipment in a neat and workmanlike manner. 

 
 RFP Section 4.4 – Work Plan:  This section is revised to add Item 5, as follows: 

 
5.  Provide two detailed case studies of previous projects completed by the bidder.  One 
project must have included implementation of a green screen.  Each case study must 
include at least the following components:  
 

(a) approach to achieving the client’s desired “look”;  
(b) how equipment was selected to achieve the desired design outcome;  
(c) steps taken to troubleshoot any issues that may have arisen;  
(d) any variances to original timelines, with associated explanation. 

 
 Note:  Do not include any mention of specific cost factors in the case studies.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By signing below, the bidder attests to receiving and responding to the amendment number 
indicated above.   
 
 
FIRM NAME: ________________________ 
 
REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE:  ________________________ 
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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
New York Lottery Broadcast Studio Design & Integration Services 

Supplementary Information – Summary of Site Visit Questions and Answers 
Release Date: March 23, 2017 

 
 

Q.30: How will the Commission manage the stage area during the installation work? 
 
A.30:  A temporary studio will be used during installation.  At present*, the 
plan is that the location of the temporary studio will be within the current 
studio space, but off to the side of the current stage area and out of any area 
where work will be performed.  The electrical system for the lighting will be 
managed by the New York State Office of General Services (“OGS”), who will 
also remove the current stage area.   The Commission’s lighting designer, 
Widmer Designs, will be responsible for the lighting for the temporary set.   
 
It is the Commission’s responsibility to set up the temporary studio with its 
own lighting and production; therefore, the successful bidder need not be 
concerned about any interference with the cabling aspects of the temporary 
studio, during their installation.  
 
* The Commission is currently exploring alternative options to the temporary 
studio being on-site.  Under the current plan, and as provided in the RFP, work 
by the successful bidder would need to pause each day from 11:00 a.m. to 
1:00 p.m.  If we locate the temporary studio off-site, there would be no need for 
work to pause each day.  The Commission will provide potential bidders with a 
final determination prior to the Round 2 Question deadline of March 30.   
 
Q.31: What would the Gaming Commission plan on doing for the construction of the 
Control Room, namely in regards to any power/heat loads and cable paths? 
 
A.31: If power/heat load requirements change for any new equipment, and 
accommodations are to be made to allow for these changes, then the 
Commission would like to use space equal to that used by the current setup, if 
possible. Cable paths are to remain the same: under the floor and in the 
ceiling, where applicable, and as long as it is relevant for the predicted travel 
path. Bid designs should include full schematics (such as rack elevations, 
etc.), but not cable paths.  
 
Q.32: Does the Commission want to keep the current typology (an AES router setup) 
for the analog stereo portion of the redesign?  
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A.32: Some discreet AES audio may be involved in the RFP. We don’t plan on 
going beyond 2-channel, but AES audio should be part of the plan. If we go to 
digital technology, embedding, de-embedding, and monitoring will be required 
in the signal processing.  
 
Q.33: Would the Commission like for existing equipment (in this instance, patch bays 
and router equipment) to be reused? Or can it be removed? 
 
A.33: It is anticipated that all equipment will be replaced.  Generally, aging 
patch bays can be problematic, so it is expected that it will be beneficial to 
remove current elements.  It could be determined that a piece of equipment, 
which is still functional and would be very costly to replace may be reused.  In 
terms of furniture or physical pieces (i.e. racks), it is up to the successful 
bidder to address that in their proposal.  
 
Two weeks after the award is made, the successful bidder will meet with the 
Commission, and can discuss the elements of their plan for reusing 
equipment. Whether the suggested pieces can be reused or not will be 
determined at this point. 
 
Q.34: Would the Commission like new consoles, monitor wall, and the furniture for 
these pieces? 
 
A.34: Yes.  
 
Q.35: What is the process by which the Gaming Commission plans on purchasing 
equipment? 
 
A.35: State Finance Law requires all State Agencies to use OGS Centralized 
Contracts if the commodities provided therein fit the form, function and utility 
of any product(s) the Agency may require. If something isn’t available in the 
Centralized Contracts, then the Commission will conduct a competitive bid 
and award will be based on lowest price.  
 
In the event the Commission is able to utilize an OGS Centralized Contract, the 
Commission may utilize the successful bidder for consultation on the 
equivalence of certain equipment, to determine operational compatibility with 
that of the Awardee’s recommendation, as provided for in the RFP – Scope of 
Work – for the Interim Period. 
 
Q.36: Can the Awardee bid on equipment, if it is unavailable on OGS Centralized 
Contracts? 
 
A.36:  Yes, unless it is determined that there is a conflict or apparent conflict 
between the successful bidder proposing the equipment and the equipment 
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sources.  It is anticipated that the equipment proposed will be available in the 
open market to allow for competitive bidding.   
 
Q.37: What is the Awardee’s responsibility for equipment removal? 
 
A.37: The successful bidder is responsible for decommission, dismantling and 
packing of equipment to be removed (See RFP Section 3.1.C.1.a). OGS will be 
responsible to remove all equipment designated for removal, from the building. 
 
The Commission requires removal of equipment in a manner that will preserve 
it from damage, in the event of redistribution to other State Agencies, or retail 
to the public. The State will be responsible for taking inventory of all removed 
equipment. 
 
Q.38: Whom should the Awardee address any lighting inquiries to? 
 
A.38:  The Commission’s lighting designer will be available for consultation 
regarding any lighting and lighting system design inquiries. 
 
Q.39: Are the racks with internal power distribution connected to an Uninterruptible 
Power Supply (“UPS”)? If so, will the Commission be keeping the current system, or 
is a new system preferred? 
 
A.39: The UPS for any internally powered racks is a part of the building 
infrastructure, and, therefore, not rack-based. The building’s current UPS 
layout provides the Control Room a dedicated power panel on the UPS. 
 
Q.40: Is the Commission going to be receiving, barcoding and taking inventory of the 
equipment at the construction site, for the Awardee to come to later and begin 
assembly? Or is the equipment to be delivered to the Awardee’s location for 
assembly, barcoding and taking inventory, and then brought to the construction site 
partially/fully assembled? 
 
A.40: See revised A.15 on the Acknowledgement page of this amendment. 
 
Q.41: Is the Viewing Room to be included in the Studio Redesign? 
 
Q.41: No, the Viewing Room is not to be altered. The current stage area will be 
the main focus of the successful bidder’s work to be done in that space. 
 
Q.42: Will the installation of the new studio interfere with the operation of the 
temporary studio? 
   
A.42: See A.30. 
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Q.43: What are the hours of operation, during which time the Awardee may perform 
their installation? 
 
A.43:  Working hours will be from 8:00am-11:00am, and 1:00pm-6:00pm. If 
work can be done quietly, the Awardee may be allowed to continue installation 
from 11:30am-1pm during the Midday drawing, by consent of the Commission.  
However, if it is deemed that the successful bidder is at a stage of installation, 
during the “pause” time, that becomes noisy, work will be halted during this 
time.   
 
Weekend work may be allowed, but the Commission will need to be notified in 
advance to arrange for Commission staff to be present. No work is to be done 
without at least one member of the Commission/Lottery staff present. 
 
Q.44: Even though the Green Screen is not to be physically attached, is it still to be 
considered a part of the set (in conjunction with a physical set)? 
 
A.44: Yes.  The Commission intends to provide more detailed information on 
the Green Screen.  This information will be provided prior to the Round 2 
Question deadline of March 30. 
 
Q.45: If Prevailing Wage is necessary, is it to be supplied by the Awardee? 
 
A.45:  The Design RFP should not require the use of any prevailing wages. If it 
becomes necessary to use an element of construction, OGS will come in and 
provide the required service(s).  
 
Q.46: Will the Commission plan on continuing to use one broadcast service panel for 
the studio, as it currently does?  
 
A.46: It is up to the successful bidder to propose/determine what works best 
for their design. 
 
Q.47: How is the current workflow process organized, and how many mediums are 
used? 
 
A.47: The Commission currently records two copies of each drawing into the 
key-pro decks and two onto DVD. There is an iso-camera on the studio floor, 
in case a ball falls out of the drawing machine and a dub tower for redundancy.  
 
The Commission also records into a turbo system, which is dedicated to 
refeeding any recordings via satellite. This is done in the event that a station 
misses a drawing, or during the time after a drawing is finished and the post-
test and ball seal are performed and recorded on the primary system, when a 
refeed is needed. 
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Q.48: Does the Commission’s workflow contain a means to archive files and media? 
 
A.48: The Commission currently does not have an efficient way to transfer 
files and media from the recording devices to be archived. If there is a better 
FTP file transfer option available, then the successful bidders may suggest 
them.  It is also worth noting that because CBS airs the drawings live, we must 
continue to use a satellite uplink. 
 
Q.49: Does the facility need to be Plenum-rated?  
 
A.49: Plenum is used in the ceiling, but not in the floor. For the building 
requirements, we will investigate further to provide clarification to potential 
bidders by April 3, 2017. 
 
Q.50: Are the edits going to continue to be performed in the Control Room? 
 
A.50: Yes. 
 
Q.51: Does the TV in the Control Room offer camera control? 
 
A.51: No. However, the Commission may seek to use this function in the future. 
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